Public Document Pack





Date:

Time: 10.00 am

Wednesday, 1 February 2017 WOULD MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS A TRAINING SESSION FROM 9 A.M. – 9.45 A.M. ON **CAR PARKING STANDARDS**

Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Newport Venue:

To: Councillors P Huntley (Chair), V Delahaye (Deputy Chair), D Fouweather, M Linton, J Mudd, R White, O Ali, K Critchley, C Evans and M Al-Nuaimi

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site.

At the start of the meeting the Mayor or Person Presiding will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may be also used for training purposes within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any gueries regarding this, please contact the Chief Democratic Services Officer.

NB: Please click on the link below to view the Planning Code of Practice:-

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Planning-Codeof-Conduct/Planning-Code-of-Practice.pdf

Copies of the Planning Code of Practice will be available at the meeting.

Part 1

Item

Wards Affected

All Wards

- 1. Agenda Cymraeg / Welsh (Pages 3 - 4)
- 2. Apologies for Absence
- 3. **Declarations of Interest**
- 4. Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
- 5. Development Management Planning Application Schedule (Pages 11 - 34)

Contact: Miriam Durkin Tel: 01633 656656 E-mail: miriam.durkin@newport.gov.uk Date of Issue: Wednesday, 25 January 2017

- 6. <u>Section 106 Contributions on a Ward Basis Presentation</u>
- 7. <u>Appeal Decisions</u> (Pages 35 40)

Marshfield

All Wards

NB: Would Members please ensure no printed copies of the agenda are left in the room at the conclusion of the meeting. Leaving paper copies of reports where they can be accessed by unauthorised persons could present a data breach

Agenda Item 1.



Agenda Pwyllgor Cynllunio

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 1 Chwefror, 2017

Amser: 10.00 a.m.

Lleoliad: Siambr y Cyngor, Canolfan Ddinesig

At sylw: Y Cynghorwyr Huntley (Cadeirydd), Delahaye (Dirprwy Gadeirydd), Ali, Al-Nuaimi, Critchley, C Evans, Fouweather, Linton, Mudd and White

HYSBYSIAD GWE-DDARLLEDU

Gall y cyfarfod hwn gael ei ffilmio ar gyfer darllediad byw neu ddarllediad wedi hynny trwy wefan y Cyngor.

Ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod, bydd y Maer neu'r Person sy'n Llywyddu yn cadarnhau os yw cyfan neu ran o'r cyfarfod yn cael ei ffilmio. Efallai y bydd y delweddau a recordiad sain yn cael eu defnyddio hefyd at ddibenion hyfforddiant o fewn y Cyngor.

Yn gyffredinol, nid yw'r ardaloedd eistedd cyhoeddus yn cael eu ffilmio. Fodd bynnag, wrth fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod a defnyddio'r ardal seddau cyhoeddus, rydych yn rhoi caniatâd i chi gael eich ffilmio a defnydd posibl o rhai delweddau a recordiadau sain ar gyfer gwe-ddarlledu a/neu ddibenion hyfforddiant.

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau ynghylch hyn, cysylltwch â Phrif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.

DS: Cliciwch ar y ddolen isod i weld y Cod Ymarfer Cynllunio:-

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Planning-Codeof-Conduct/Planning-Code-of-Practice.pdf

Bydd copïau o'r Cod Ymarfer Cynllunio ar gael yn y cyfarfod.

Eitem

Wardiau dan Sylw

Pob Ward

- 1. Agenda Cym
- 2. <u>Ymddiheuriadau dros Absenoldeb</u>
- 3. Datganiadau Diddordeb
- 4. <u>Cofnodion y cyfarfod (ydd) diwethaf</u> Pob Ward
- 5. <u>Rheoli Datblygu: Rhaglen Ceisiadau Cynllunio</u> Pob Ward
- 6. Adran 105 Cyfraniadau Ar Sail y Ward

Cysylltwch â: Miriam Durkin Rhif Ffôn: 01633 656656 E-bost: miriam.durkin@newport.gov.uk Dyddiad Cyhoeddi: 25 Ionawr, 2017 Page 3

7. <u>Penderfyniadau Apeliadau</u>

Agenda Item 4.



Minutes

Planning Committee

Date: 11 January 2017

Time: 10.00 am

Present: Councillors P Huntley (Chair), V Delahaye (Deputy Chair), D Fouweather, R White, O Ali, K Critchley and M Al-Nuiami

> T Brooks (Development & Regeneration Manager), J Davidson (East Area Applications Manager), S Williams (West Area Applications Manager), E Jones (Principal Planning Officer), A Lowe (Planning Contributions Manager), C Jones (Principal Engineer), S Carle (Tree Officer), S Davies (Strategy & Development Manager), J Evans (Senior Solicitor) and M Durkin (Democratic Services Officer

Apologies: Councillors M Linton, J Mudd and C Evans

1 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December, 2016 were submitted.

Resolved

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December, 2016 be taken as read and confirmed.

2 Development Management: Planning Application Schedule

Resolved

(1) That decisions be recorded as shown on the Planning Applications Schedule attached as an Appendix.

(2) That the Development Services Manager be authorised to draft any amendments to/additional conditions or reasons for refusal in respect of the Planning Applications Schedule, attached.

(3) That a report be submitted to the next meeting detailing information relating to Section 106 Agreements on a ward by ward basis.

(4) That the Conservation Officer considers the merit of extending the City Centre Conservation Area and his recommendation reported back to Committee.

3 Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 4/ 2016 - Rear of 14 Ffordd Camlas

Consideration was given to a report proposing the confirmation of a provisional TPO. One objection had been received and was detailed. The Tree Officer reported that the objection was insufficient reason for the Council to omit the tree from the Order and the reasons were detailed.

The Tree Officer reported that should Committee be minded to confirm the provisional TPO it would need to be amended to reflect the fact that the reference to five trees should be one tree. It was also confirmed that should the owner of the land on which the tree was positioned wished to trim it he need only apply.

Mr M Currier spoke in objection to the TPO.

Resolved

That the Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 4 of 2014 at the rear of 14 Ffordd Camlas be confirmed with modifications.

4 Appeal Decisions

Consideration was given to a report following recent appeals.

Planning Application Appeals – Dismissed

1. Application 16/0349 – 25 Pollard Close, Caerleon – Change of Use of part of dwelling to day spa and two bedroom for bed and breakfast accommodation with associated parking layout alterations.

2. Application 15/1249 – Land adjacent to barn adjacent to High Meadow and Wellsworth, Bishton – erection of an agricultural building for the storage of agricultural equipment.

3. Application 16/0534 - 1 Norman Terrace, Norman Street, Caerleon – Proposed dormer to main roof.

4. Application 16/0202 - Land adjacent to 11 Curie Close, Malpas – Proposed construction of two semi-detached houses.

5. Application 16/0842 – 28 Temple Street – Construction of loft conversion involving a rear dormer containing bedroom and en suite (resubmission following the refusal of Application 15/1503).

Resolved

That the appeal decisions be accepted as a basis for informing future decisions of the Planning Committee

Appendix

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 11 JANUARY 2017

DECISION SCHEDULE

	No	Site/Proposal	Ward	Additional Comments	Decision
Page 7	16/0489	38 Park Drive Replace flat roof with tiled pitch roof to garage and reposition of side wall to new rear extension (amendments to previous approval 15/0847)	Gaer	Councillor Wilcox, Gaer Ward Member spoke on this application and requested that a site visit be undertaken.	Site Inspection Reason To understand the extent of the works carried out and how these relate to the context of the site and surrounding properties
	15/1007	Ebbw Bridge Club and Institute, 217 Cardiff Road Demolition of existing buildings and new mixed development comprising 21 flats (16 x 1 bed and 5 x 2 bed) and two retail units (Total 482m2) and associated car parking, refuse and amenity facilities	Gaer	HRIH reported that following Committee approval of the original application, the applicant had established that the scheme was unviable, this being confirmed by the Council's preferred Toolkit, and could not proceed with the inclusion of affordable units. Mr R Chichester on behalf of the applicant spoke in support of the application.	Granted with conditions subject to a S106 Agreement with delegated powers to refuse in the event that the agreement is not signed within three months of the decision
	16/0665	Land formerly known as 21 Kelvedon Street	Victoria	HRIH reported that Committee had refused this application in December, 2016 but that the Agent acting on behalf of the Applicant	Refused

		Proposed residential development comprising undercroft parking to ground floor and 52 No.Apartments to upper floors (resubmission)		had not been given the opportunity to speak at the meeting. It had been resubmitted for consideration. Mr P Musker on behalf of the Applicant spoke in support of the application.	
Page 8	16/1021	5 Clytha Park Road Change of use from Computer IT shop (A1) to Micropub (A3)	Stow Hill	 HRIH reported on the late representations previously circulated. Ms K Jones on behalf of the applicant spoke in support of the application. Councillor Al-Nuaimi, Stow Hill Ward Member spoke objecting to the application. (On conclusion of this item the Committee took an five minute break) 	Granted with conditions
	16/0983	2 Church Row, Magor Erection of a porch	Llanwern	HRIH referred to the need to delete the word "not" in Paragraph 7.5 third line.Mr Lloyd the applicant spoke in support of the application.	Refused
	16/0788	Land and buildings encompassing 123 to 129 Commercial Street Demolition of existing buildings (123-129 Commercial Street inclusive), change of use (in part) and the construction of mixed use development comprising of a ground floor retail unit, reconfigured pedestrian access to existing car park and 38 No. apartments for over	Stow Hill	HRIH reported on the late representations previously circulated. Councillor Al-Nuaimi, Stow Hill Ward Member spoke in support of the application.	Granted with conditions subject to a S106 Agreement with delegated powers to refuse in the event that the agreement is not signed within three months of the decision

55 year olds (complete with associated car parking, bin storage,		
hard and soft landscaping and	(Councillor Fouweather left the meeting	
amenity areas)	following the conclusion of this item)	

This page is intentionally left blank

Report Planning Committee



Part 1

Date: 1 February 2017

Item No: 5

Subject Planning Application Schedule

Purpose To take decisions on items presented on the attached schedule

Author Interim Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing

Ward As indicated on the schedule

Summary The Planning Committee has delegated powers to take decisions in relation to planning applications. The reports contained in this schedule assess the proposed development against relevant planning policy and other material planning considerations, and take into consideration all consultation responses received. Each report concludes with an Officer recommendation to the Planning Committee on whether or not Officers consider planning permission should be granted (with suggested planning conditions where applicable), or refused (with suggested reasons for refusal).

The purpose of the attached reports and associated Officer presentation to the Committee is to allow the Planning Committee to make a decision on each application in the attached schedule having weighed up the various material planning considerations.

The decisions made are expected to benefit the City and its communities by allowing good quality development in the right locations and resisting inappropriate or poor quality development in the wrong locations.

Proposal 1. To resolve decisions as shown on the attached schedule. 2. To authorise the Interim Development and Regeneration Manager to draft any amendments to, additional conditions or reasons for refusal in respect of the Planning Applications Schedule attached

- Action by Planning Committee
- Timetable Immediate

This report was prepared after consultation with:

- Local Residents
- Members
- Statutory Consultees

The Officer recommendations detailed in this report are made following consultation as set out in the Council's approved policy on planning consultation and in accordance with legal requirements.

Background

The reports contained in this schedule assess the proposed development against relevant planning policy and other material planning considerations, and take into consideration all consultation responses received. Each report concludes with an Officer recommendation to the Planning Committee on whether or not Officers consider planning permission should be granted (with suggested planning conditions where applicable), or refused (with suggested reasons for refusal).

The purpose of the attached reports and associated Officer presentation to the Committee is to allow the Planning Committee to make a decision on each application in the attached schedule having weighed up the various material planning considerations.

The decisions made are expected to benefit the City and its communities by allowing good quality development in the right locations and resisting inappropriate or poor quality development in the wrong locations.

Applications can be granted subject to planning conditions. Conditions must meet all of the following criteria:

- Necessary;
- Relevant to planning legislation (i.e. a planning consideration);
- Relevant to the proposed development in question;
- Precise;
- Enforceable; and
- Reasonable in all other respects.

Applications can be granted subject to a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). This secures planning obligations to offset the impacts of the proposed development. However, in order for these planning obligations to be lawful, they must meet all of the following criteria:

- Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
- Directly related to the development; and
- Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The applicant has a statutory right of appeal against the refusal of permission in most cases, or against the imposition of planning conditions. There is no third party right of appeal against a decision.

Work is carried out by existing staff and there are no staffing issues. It is sometimes necessary to employ a Barrister to act on the Council's behalf in defending decisions at planning appeals. This cost is met by existing budgets. Where the Planning Committee refuses an application against Officer advice, Members will be required to assist in defending their decision at appeal.

Where applicable as planning considerations, specific issues relating to sustainability and environmental issues, equalities impact and crime prevention impact of each proposed development are addressed in the relevant report in the attached schedule.

Financial Summary

The cost of determining planning applications and defending decisions at any subsequent appeal is met by existing budgets and partially offset by statutory planning application fees. Costs can be awarded against the Council at an appeal if the Council has acted unreasonably and/or cannot defend its decisions. Similarly, costs can be awarded in the Council's favour if an appellant has acted unreasonably and/or cannot substantiate their grounds of appeal.

Risks

Three main risks are identified in relating to the determination of planning applications by Planning Committee: decisions being overturned at appeal; appeals being lodged for failing to determine applications within the statutory time period; and judicial review.

An appeal can be lodged by the applicant if permission is refused or if conditions are imposed. Costs can be awarded against the Council if decisions cannot be defended as reasonable, or if it behaves unreasonably during the appeal process, for example by not submitting required documents within required timescales. Conversely, costs can be awarded in the Council's favour if the appellant cannot defend their argument or behaves unreasonably.

An appeal can also be lodged by the applicant if the application is not determined within the statutory time period. However, with the type of major development being presented to the Planning Committee, which often requires a Section 106 agreement, it is unlikely that the application will be determined within the statutory time period. Appeals against non-determination are rare due to the further delay in receiving an appeal decision: it is generally quicker for applicants to wait for the Planning Authority to determine the application. Costs could only be awarded against the Council if it is found to have acted unreasonably. Determination of an application would only be delayed for good reason, such as resolving an objection or negotiating improvements or Section 106 contributions, and so the risk of a costs award is low.

A decision can be challenged in the Courts via a judicial review where an interested party is dissatisfied with the way the planning system has worked or how a Council has made a planning decision. A judicial review can be lodged if a decision has been made without taking into account a relevant planning consideration, if a decision is made taking into account an irrelevant consideration, or if the decision is irrational or perverse. If the Council loses the judicial review, it is at risk of having to pay the claimant's full costs in bringing the challenge, in addition to the Council's own costs in defending its decision. In the event of a successful challenge, the planning permission would normally be quashed and remitted back to the Council for reconsideration. If the Council wins, its costs would normally be met by the claimant who brought the unsuccessful challenge. Defending judicial reviews involves considerable officer time, legal advice, and instructing a barrister, and is a very expensive process. In addition to the financial implications, the Council's reputation may be harmed.

Mitigation measures to reduce risk are detailed in the table below. The probability of these risks occurring is considered to be low due to the mitigation measures, however the costs associated with a public inquiry and judicial review can be high.

Risk	Impact of risk if it occurs* (H/M/L)	Probability of risk occurring (H/M/L)	What is the Council doing or what has it done to avoid the risk or reduce its effect?	Who is responsible for dealing with the risk?
Decisions challenged at appeal and costs awarded against the Council.	Μ	L	Ensure reasons for refusal can be defended at appeal. Ensure planning conditions imposed meet the tests set out in Circular 016/2014.	Planning Committee Planning Committee
			Provide guidance to Planning Committee regarding relevant material planning considerations, conditions and reasons for refusal.	Development Services Manager and Senior Legal Officer
			Ensure appeal timetables are adhered to.	Development Services Manager
Appeal lodged against non- determination,	Μ	L	Avoid delaying the determination of applications unreasonably.	Planning Committee
with costs awarded			Page 13	Development Services

Risk	Impact of risk if it occurs* (H/M/L)	Probability of risk occurring (H/M/L)	What is the Council doing or what has it done to avoid the risk or reduce its effect?	Who is responsible for dealing with the risk?
against the Council				Manager
Judicial review successful with costs awarded against the Council	Н	L	Ensure sound and rational decisions are made.	Planning Committee Development Services Manager

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures

Links to Council Policies and Priorities

The Council's Corporate Plan 2012-2017 identifies five corporate aims: being a Caring City; a Fairer City; A Learning and Working City; A Greener and Healthier City; and a Safer City. Key priority outcomes include ensuring people live in sustainable communities; enabling people to lead independent lives; ensuring decisions are fair; improving the life-chances of children and young people; creating a strong and confident local economy; improving the attractiveness of the City; promoting environmental sustainability; ensuring people live in safe and inclusive communities; and making Newport a vibrant and welcoming place to visit and enjoy.

Through development management decisions, good quality development is encouraged and the wrong development in the wrong places is resisted. Planning decisions can therefore contribute directly and indirectly to these priority outcomes by helping to deliver sustainable communities and affordable housing; allowing adaptations to allow people to remain in their homes; improving energy efficiency standards; securing appropriate Planning Contributions to offset the demands of new development to enable the expansion and improvement of our schools and leisure facilities; enabling economic recovery, tourism and job creation; tackling dangerous structures and unsightly land and buildings; bringing empty properties back into use; and ensuring high quality 'place-making'.

The Corporate Plan links to other strategies and plans, the main ones being:

- Single Integrated Plan;
- Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (Adopted January 2015);

The Newport Single Integrated Plan (SIP) is the defining statement of strategic planning intent for the next 3 years. It identifies key priorities for improving the City. Its vision is: "*Working together to create a proud and prosperous City with opportunities for all*"

The Single Integrated Plan has six priority themes, which are:

- Skills and Work
- Economic Opportunity
- Health and Wellbeing
- Safe and Cohesive Communities
- City Centre
- Alcohol and Substance Misuse

Under Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 all planning applications must be determined in accordance with the Newport Local Development Plan (Adopted January 2015) unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning decisions are therefore based primarily on this core Council policy.

Options Available

1) To determine the application in accordance with the Officer recommendation (with amendments to or additional condite as one for refusal if appropriate);

- 2) To grant or refuse planning permission against Officer recommendation (in which case the Planning Committee's reasons for its decision must be clearly minuted);
- 3) To decide to carry out a site visit, either by the Site Inspection Sub-Committee or by full Planning Committee (in which case the reason for the site visit must be minuted).

Preferred Option and Why

To determine the application in accordance with the Officer recommendation (with amendments to or additional conditions or reasons for refusal if appropriate).

Comments of Chief Financial Officer

In the normal course of events, there should be no specific financial implications arising from the determination of planning applications.

There is always a risk of a planning decision being challenged at appeal. This is especially the case where the Committee makes a decision contrary to the advice of Planning Officers or where in making its decision, the Committee takes into account matters which are not relevant planning considerations. These costs can be very considerable, especially where the planning application concerned is large or complex or the appeal process is likely to be protracted.

Members of the Planning Committee should be mindful that the costs of defending appeals and any award of costs against the Council following a successful appeal must be met by the taxpayers of Newport.

There is no provision in the Council's budget for such costs and as such, compensating savings in services would be required to offset any such costs that were incurred as a result of a successful appeal.

Comments of Monitoring Officer

Planning Committee are required to have regard to the Officer advice and recommendations set out in the Application Schedule, the relevant planning policy context and all other material planning considerations. If Members are minded not to accept the Officer recommendation, then they must have sustainable planning reasons for their decisions.

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change

Development Management work is undertaken by an in-house team and therefore there are no staffing implications arising from this report. Officer recommendations have been based on adopted planning policy which aligns with the Single Integrated Plan and the Council's Corporate Plan objectives.

Local issues

Ward Members were notified of planning applications in accordance with the Council's adopted policy on planning consultation. Any comments made regarding a specific planning application are recorded in the report in the attached schedule

Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010

The Equality Act 2010 contains a Public Sector Equality Duty which came into force on 06 April 2011. The Act identifies a number of 'protected characteristics', namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership. The new single duty aims to integrate consideration of equality and good relations into the regular business of public authorities. Compliance with the duty is a legal obligation and is intended to result in better informed decision-making and policy development and services that are more effective for users. In exercising its functions, the Council must have due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. The Act is not overly prescriptive about the approach a public authority should take to ensure due regard, although it does set out that due regard to advancing equality involves: removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics; takin page to need to repeat the needs of people from protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and encouraging people from protected

groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

An Equality Impact Assessment for delivery of the Development Management service has been completed and can be viewed on the Council's website.

Children and Families (Wales) Measure

Although no targeted consultation takes place specifically aimed at children and young people, consultation on planning applications and appeals is open to all of our citizens regardless of their age. Depending on the scale of the proposed development, applications are publicised via letters to neighbouring occupiers, site notices, press notices and/or social media. People replying to consultations are not required to provide their age or any other personal data, and therefore this data is not held or recorded in any way, and responses are not separated out by age.

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Section 3 of the Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (section 5).

Objective 9 (Health and Well Being) of the adopted Newport Local Development Plan (2011-2026) links to this duty with its requirement to provide an environment that is safe and encourages healthy lifestyle choices and promotes well-being.

Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh Language)

Section 11 of the Act makes it mandatory for all Local Planning Authorities to consider the effect of their Local Development Plans on the Welsh language, by undertaking an appropriate assessment as part of the Sustainability Appraisal of the plan. It also requires Local Planning Authorities to keep evidence relating to the use of the Welsh language in the area up-to-date.

Section 31 clarifies that impacts on the Welsh language may be a consideration when taking decisions on applications for planning permission so far as it is material to the application. The provision does not apportion any additional weight to the Welsh language in comparison to other material considerations. Whether or not the Welsh language is a material consideration in any planning application remains entirely at the discretion of the decision maker.

Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. Objectives 1 (Sustainable Use of Land) and 9 (Health and Well-being) of the adopted Newport Local Development Plan (2011-2026) link to this requirement to ensure that development makes a positive contribution to local communities and to provide an environment that is safe and encourages healthy lifestyle choices and promotes well-being.

Consultation

Comments received from wider consultation, including comments from elected members, are detailed in each application report in the attached schedule.

Background Papers

NATIONAL POLICY

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 9 (November 2016) Minerals Planning Policy Wales (December 2000)

PPW Technical Advice Notes (TAN):

- TAN 1: Joint Housing Land Availability Studies (2006)
- TAN 2: Planning and Affordable Housing (2006)
- TAN 3: Simplified Planning Zones (1996)
- TAN 4: Retailing and Town Centres (1996)
- TAN 5: Nature Čonservation and Plang (2009)

TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) TAN 7: Outdoor Advertisement Control (1996) TAN 8: Renewable Energy (2005) TAN 9: Enforcement of Planning Control (1997) TAN 10: Tree Preservation Orders (1997) TAN 11: Noise (1997) TAN 12: Design (2014) TAN 13: Tourism (1997) TAN 14: Coastal Planning (1998) TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) TAN 16: Sport, Recreation and Open Space (2009) TAN 18: Transport (2007) TAN 19: Telecommunications (2002) TAN 20: The Welsh Language: Unitary Development Plans and Planning Control (2013) TAN 21: Waste (2014) TAN 23: Economic Development (2014)

Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) Wales 1: Aggregates (30 March 2004) Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) Wales 2: Coal (20 January 2009)

Welsh Government Circular 016/2014 on planning conditions

LOCAL POLICY

Newport Local Development Plan (LDP) 2011-2026 (Adopted January 2015)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

Affordable Housing (adopted August 2015) Archaeology & Archaeologically Sensitive Areas (adopted August 2015) Flat Conversions (adopted August 2015) House Extensions and Domestic Outbuildings (adopted August 2015) Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) (adopted August 2015) (updated January 2017) New dwellings (adopted August 2015) Parking Standards (adopted August 2015) Planning Obligations (adopted August 2015) Security Measures for Shop Fronts and Commercial Premises (adopted August 2015) Wildlife and Development (adopted August 2015) Mineral Safeguarding (adopted January 2017) Outdoor Play Space (adopted January 2017) Trees, Woodland, Hedgerows and Development Sites (adopted January 2017)

OTHER

The Colliers International Retail Study (July 2010) is not adopted policy but is a material consideration in making planning decisions.

The Economic Development Strategy is a material planning consideration.

The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2016 are relevant to the recommendations made.

Other documents and plans relevant to specific planning applications are detailed at the end of each application report in the attached schedule

APPLICATION DETAILS

No:	16/1218	Ward:	LLISWERRY		
Туре:	FULL (MAJOR	()			
Expiry Date:	10-FEB-2017				
Applicant:	STARBURST	LTD			
Site:			WROOM AND VAY, NEWPORT		ADJACENT
Proposal:	SQUARE M	ETRES OF	F FLOOR SI	B8 USE TO PRO PACE AND AS AND CIRCULATION	SSOCIATED

Recommendation: Granted with Conditions

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This application seeks retrospective planning permission for a Class B1/2/8 unit totalling 4998m² in floor area.
- 1.2 Planning permission was granted in 2016 for the erection of 2no. buildings for B1/B2/B8 use to provide 5,498 square metres of floor space and associated infrastructure including parking and circulation areas. However, one of the buildings (sited to the south-west of the site) has been constructed approximately 1.5m nearer to the southern boundary and 13m nearer to Langland Way to the west. The building is also 2m wider and 1m higher (to the eaves) than the previously approved building. Internally the building has been subdivided into 12 smaller units.
- 1.3 The building is not yet occupied.

2. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

95/0163	CHANGE OF USE TO VEHICLE SALES AND ANCILLARY USES TO INCLUDE OFFICES CAR STORAGE AND REPAIR WORKSHOPS AND DEMOLITION OF OUTBUILDINGS	Granted with Conditions
92/0758	ERECTION OF PREFABRICATED MODULAR OFFICE COMPLEX	Granted with Conditions
16/0438	ERECTION OF 2NO. BUILDINGS FOR B1/B2/B8 USE TO PROVIDE 5,498 SQUARE METRES OF FLOOR SPACE AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE INCLUDING PARKING AND CIRCULATION AREAS	Granted with Conditions

3. POLICY CONTEXT

3.1 Newport Local Development Plan 2011 – 2026 (Adopted January 2015)

SP1 – Sustainability favours proposals which make a positive contribution to sustainable development.

SP3 – Flood Risk ensures development is directed away from flood risk areas.

SP17 – Employment allocates 172 hectares of employment land for the plan period.

SP18 – Urban Regeneration supports development which assists the regeneration of the urban area, particularly the city centre and the reuse of vacant, underused or derelict land.

GP1 – Climate Change states that development should be designed to withstand predicted climate change and reduce the risks and consequences of flooding, minimise energy requirements, reuse/recycle construction material and meet the relevant BREEAM or Code for Sustainable Homes Level.

GP2 – General Amenity states that development will not be permitted where it has a significant adverse effect on local amenity in terms of noise, disturbance, overbearing, light, odours and air quality. Development will not be permitted which is detrimental to the visual amenity. Proposals should seek to design out crime and anti-social behaviour, promote inclusion and provide adequate amenity for future occupiers.

GP3 – Service Infrastructure states that development will only be provided where necessary and appropriate service infrastructure either exists or can be provided. This includes power supplies, water, means of sewage disposal and telecommunications.

GP4 – Highways and Accessibility states that development should provide appropriate access for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport along with appropriate car parking and cycle storage. Development should not be detrimental to the highway, highway capacity or pedestrian safety and should be designed to enhance sustainable forms of transport and accessibility.

GP6 – Quality of Design states that good quality design will be sought in all forms of development. In considering proposals, a number of factors are listed which should be considered to ensure a good quality scheme is developed. These include consideration of the context of the site; access, permeability and layout; preservation and enhancement; scale and form of the development; materials and detailing; and sustainability.

CE6 – Archaeology states that proposals in areas known to have archaeological interest or potentially have archaeological interest will be required to undertake an archaeological impact assessment.

T4 – Parking states that development will be expected to provide appropriate levels of parking.

3.2 Adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance

Parking SPG – August 2015 Archaeology & Archaeologically Sensitive Areas SPG – August 2015

4. CONSULTATIONS

- 4.1 GLAMORGAN GWENT ARCHAELOGICAL TRUST: We note the submission of an Archaeological Impact Assessment accompanying the application. The development has commenced prior to the granting of any planning permission, with the piling being completed. The intrusive groundworks required for the piling has already occurred, and the levels raised to create a level building platform. As a result the only construction works of sufficient depth to possibly impact on any archaeological material is the piling itself. As such work has already taken place, any potentially adverse effect on the archaeological resource has already occurred. As a result, we have no further comment to make at this time.
- 4.2 NATURAL RESOURCES WALES: The application site lies entirely within Zone C1, as defined by the Development Advice Map (DAM) referred to under Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk (TAN15) (July 2004). Our Flood Map information, which is updated on a quarterly basis, confirms the site to be within the 0.5% (1 in 200 year) and 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability tidal flood outlines of the River Usk, which is a designated main river. We recommend that you should only grant planning permission if a condition requiring a finished floor level of 8.15 metres AOD is imposed. This condition will address significant concerns that we have identified and we would not object provided you attach them to the planning permission.
- 4.3 WALES AND WEST UTILITIES: Provide details of apparatus in the area.
- 4.4 NETWORK RAIL: We note in the Flood Consequences Assessment that the applicant has indicated that *"The assumed designated evacuation route to be followed upon receipt of a*

relevant flood warning will be northwards and onto Spytty Road/Queensway through in an emergency pedestrian access onto the railway embankment may be an option". This will not be allowed by Network Rail and we would object to the above proposal should this be agreed by the LPA on the grounds of safety as this is an operational railway with trains running 24/7. Notwithstanding the above, I give below my comments and requirements for the safe operation of the railway and the protection of Network Rail's adjoining land: -Should the applicant require access to Network Rail land then they must seek approval from Network Rail Asset Protection Team.

-All surface water drainage should be directed away from Network Rail's land to the public mains system.

-Where Network Rail has defined access points, these must be maintained to Network Rail's satisfaction.

-Any lighting associated with the development (including vehicle lights) must not interfere with the sighting of signalling apparatus and/or train drivers vision on approaching trains. The location and colour of lights must not give rise to the potential for confusion with the signalling arrangements on the railway.

-Where new roads, turning spaces or parking areas are to be situated adjacent to the railway; which is at or below the level of the development, suitable crash barriers or high kerbs should be provided to prevent vehicles accidentally driving or rolling onto the railway or damaging the lineside fencing.

-Applications that are likely to generate an increase in trips under railway bridges may be of concern to Network Rail where there is potential for an increase in 'Bridge strikes'. Vehicles hitting railway bridges cause significant disruption and delay to rail users. Consultation with Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineers is necessary to understand if there is a problem. Developers may be asked to pay for bridge protection barriers.

4.5 DWR CYMRU - WELSH WATER: Conditions relating to drainage are requested.

5. INTERNAL COUNCIL ADVICE

- 5.1 HEAD OF STREETSCENE AND CITY SERVICES (HIGHWAYS): No objections are offered subject to the submission of a travel plan and a Construction Management Plan.
- 5.2 HEAD OF STREETSCENE AND CITY SERVICES (DRAINAGE): I am satisfied that the surface water from the roofs shall be dealt with by Building Control processes. I also assume that no additional paved/hard areas are to be provided that would require drainage, i.e. parking, etc. Providing that is the case, I have no further objection/comment.
- 5.3 HEAD OF LAW AND REGULATION (ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH): It is requested that a condition is imposed requiring a construction management plan.
- 5.4 HEAD OF LAW AND REGULATION (ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH) (AIR QUALITY): The site is located adjacent to a main A road and there are no air quality management areas (AQMA) in the near vicinity. Therefore it is unlikely that air quality could be considered of material concern for this application given he current planning policy. I therefore have no reason to object.

6. **REPRESENTATIONS**

6.1 NEIGHBOURS: All properties within 50m were consulted (1 property), a site notice displayed, and a press notice published in South Wales Argus. 1no response received raising the following objections:

-This application and related applications have been submitted in a piecemeal fashion preventing the Council from assessing the overall impact of the development as a whole, not just in terms of road traffic safety, air pollution but also the wider impact on public health, the environment and the local amenity;

-The applicant has submitted multiple applications and this should be drawn to the attention of Planning Committee so that they can assess the overall impact of the various applications;

-We are deeply concerned at the manner in which this owner/developer has abused the planning law by constructing a large extension without planning permission. As a food processing business, we are naturally concerned that if the activities conducted at the Carcraft site are not subjected to stringent conditions it could potentially impact on our proposal BRC accreditation;

-The traffic levels on SDR are becoming unbearable with increased amounts of heavy pollution created by commercial vehicles. The development will only exacerbate such problems;

-We have serious concerns relating to air pollution, road traffic issues and the impact of the large scale development on local amenities and the environment;

-The developer has deliberately removed a large number of mature trees which according to the original plans submitted to the Council (and approved) were meant to be kept and instead he has built a very large ugly steel extension on the area which is supposed to be parking spaces, and in so doing has now blocked our right to light and obscured our building from the main road;

-Whilst we accept that any application must be judged entirely on its planning merits, we are utterly appalled at the way the owner/developer has conducted itself in relation to this matter, who has abused the planning laws to construct a building which is now apparently twice the size than had been originally permitted;

-The scale of development (taken as a whole) at the Carcraft site together with the volume of traffic (including fumes) generated at the site, will undeniably exacerbate air pollution for the local communities (and pose health risks) who live near the SDR, which is already heavily congested and dangerous;

-The increased volume of traffic on the SDR has resulted in many accidents and deaths, most recently in September 2016 when a woman died crossing the road;

-Request that Members visit the site to fully appreciate the impact of the development on the neighbouring unit.

7. ASSESSMENT

7.1 The site is located within Leeway Industrial Estate and comprises 1.15 hectares and forms part of the former Carcraft unit. A separate planning application is currently under consideration by the Council relating to the change of use of the former Carcraft building. Vehicle access to the buildings would be from the existing access to the site off Langland Way. The site is surrounded by a mixture of established commercial and industrial uses to the east, south and west and to the north it is bordered by the Southern Distributor Road.

7.2 **Design**

The building measures 26m in width, 185m in length and 9.7m in height with a shallow pitched roof. As noted above, the building is sub-divided to provide smaller units in order to provide flexibility for future occupiers. Parking is to be provided to the front and sides of the buildings. The design of the building is utilitarian and it is considered to be in keeping with the surrounding commercial/industrial uses. The building is clad in metallic silver micro-rib whilst the roof is clad in Kingspan Goosewing Grey, with skylights within the roofs.

7.3 Whilst the scale of the proposed buildings is considerable, it is not considered to be out of keeping in this predominantly industrial/commercial area. The overall massing of the building is considerably less than that of the existing Carcraft building. Whilst the re-siting of the building is not preferable to the approved layout, there is a policy presumption in favour of development and the Local Planning Authority must identify harm in refusing applications. The re-siting of the building and increase in size is considered to be acceptable within the context of the area which is predominantly industrial. Although the back of the building is visible from Langland Way when travelling towards the SDR, screening is provided by existing trees and the building appears commensurate with the scale of neighbouring buildings.

- 7.4 In term of impact of the development on the neighbouring unit, the application unit is sited to the north of the neighbouring Eurofoods building and consequently the shadow cast by the development falls in the direction of former Carcraft building and the hardstanding area between the former Carcraft building and the application building and not towards the Eurofoods building. Consequently, the new building does not cause a significant degree of overshadowing. Furthermore, there are windows in the eastern and southern elevations of the neighbouring building (as well as the northern elevation facing the application property) and subsequently whilst some offices on the northern elevation of the neighbouring building may experience a degree of loss of light as a result of the development, there will be offices within the building which are unaffected by the development. In any event offices are a working environment where a lower level of amenity than dwellings can be reasonably expected.
- 7.5 The obstruction of the view of the neighbouring building from the SDR as a result of the siting of the application property nearer to Langland Way is not considered to be a planning matter.
- 7.6 The nearest residential properties are situated on the opposite side of the dual carriageway approximately 180m away. As such it is considered that there would be no impact on residential amenity as a result of the proposals.

7.7 Economic Benefits

The building would provide 4998 square metres of B1/B2/B8 floor space. This would contribute to the Council's employment land supply. The proposals represent a sustainable use of brownfield land and are located within an existing industrial area with associated infrastructure. The proposals are considered to be an appropriate use at the site.

7.8 Highways

The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment. The Head of Streetscene and City Services (Highways) confirms the level and layout of the parking provision to be acceptable and it is not considered that the proposals would result in a detrimental impact to highway safety.

7.9 Conditions requiring the submission of a travel plan and a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) are requested. However, given that the building has already been constructed, it is not considered that the imposition of a CEMP condition would be of any benefit.

7.10 Flood Risk

The application site lies entirely within Zone C1, as defined by the Development Advice Map (DAM) referred to under Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk (TAN15) (July 2004). Our Flood Map information, which is updated on a quarterly basis, confirms the site to be within the 0.5% (1 in 200 year) and 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability tidal flood outlines of the River Usk, which is a designated main river.

7.11 Policy SP3 flood risk states: Newport's coastal and riverside location necessitates that development be directed away from areas where flood risk is identified as a constraint and ensure that the risk of flooding is not increased elsewhere. Development will only be permitted in flood risk areas in accordance with national guidance. Where appropriate a detailed technical assessment will be required to ensure that the development is designed to cope with the threat and consequences of flooding over its lifetime. Sustainable solutions to manage flood risk should be prioritised.

7.12 Overview of Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk

TAN 15 sets out a precautionary framework and identifies that new development should be directed away from areas which are at high risk of flooding (defined as Zone C), and where development has to be considered in such areas, only those developments which can be justified on the basis of the tests outlined in the TAN are to be located in such areas. The Council is expected to consult Natural Resources Wales (NRW) when considering development in Zone C1. Where a planning authority is minded to go against the advice of NRW it should inform NRW prior to granting consent allowing sufficient time for representations to be made.

7.13 Summary of NRW consultation response

NRW previously advised that subject to the proposed finished flood levels for the building being no lower than 8.15m AOD, the building would be A1.14 compliant and NRW would offer no objection to the proposals. The applicant confirms the building has been constructed with the finished floor level according with this.

- 7.14 The Local Planning Authority should be satisfied that the consequences of flooding can be acceptably managed. If the Authority is minded to approve the application, NRW advise that the developer is made aware of the potential flood risks on site and a condition relating to finished floor levels is secured to the permission ensuring suitable finished floor levels for the units.
- 7.15 It is the role of the Local Planning Authority to consider access/egress in a flood event. It was previously noted under application 16/0438 that the proposals have been shown to satisfy all but one of the tests in part A1.15 of TAN 15. Test 6 "Escape/evacuation routes are shown by the developer to be operational under all conditions" cannot be complied with. However, it was noted that the source of potential flooding is from the tidal river Usk or Severn Estuary. The applicant advises that the tidal predictions including for surge conditions are undertaken on a 24hr/7days a week basis by the NRW. The current flood forecasting models underpinning NRW's Flood Warning Service should be able to provide up to 12 hours advance notice of a significant tidal event. Whilst advance flood notice should not be relied upon in isolation, it is considered that due to the tidal nature of the flood risk in this instance, some weight should be attributed to this in conjunction with all other considerations.
- 7.16 The proposed use is 'low vulnerability' and TAN15 acknowledges the differences in terms of different types of development and associated vulnerability.
- 7.17 Furthermore, the proposals have significant merit and include the regeneration of this prominent brownfield site and it has welcomed economic benefits.
- 7.18 On balance, when considering the associated flood risk together with the fact that the proposed use is low vulnerability in its nature, along with the regeneration benefits of the proposals, the development is considered to be acceptable in terms of flood risk. The comments of Network Rail relating to the unacceptability of the adjacent railway embankment as an access/egress route are duly noted and this is not encouraged by the Council. Notwithstanding this, as noted above, it is concluded that given the low vulnerability of the nature of the use, the tidal nature of the flood risk, the reasonable prospect of advance flood warning and the significant merit of the development, it is acceptable in terms of flood risk and the use of the railway embankment does not form part of this conclusion.

7.19 Archaeology

The site is within an Archaeological Sensitive Area. The Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological

Trust notes that the building has already been constructed. The intrusive groundworks required for the piling has already occurred, and the levels raised to create a level building platform. Furthermore, the drainage works are sufficiently shallow to be contained within the raised levels. As a result the only construction works of sufficient depth to possibly impact on any archaeological material is the piling itself. As such work has already taken place, any potentially adverse effect on the archaeological resource has already occurred. As a result, GGAT advise that they have no further comment.

7.20 Drainage

The development includes the installation of foul and surface water drainage. Dwr Cymru – Welsh Water have requested drainage conditions in order to preserve the public drainage systems. However, Dwr Cymru – Welsh Water have the power to protect their interests under legislation that is separate from planning and such conditions are not considered to be required. The Council's Drainage Manager confirms no objection on the basis that there are no additional paved/hard areas to be provided.

7.21 Air Quality

The Head of Public Protection (Environmental Health) has been consulted with regard to the proposals and advises that there are no air quality management areas (AQMA) in the near vicinity. Therefore it is unlikely that air quality could be considered of material concern for this application given he current planning policy. The Head of Public Protection (Environmental Health) offers no objections to the development.

7.22 Other Matters

It is unfortunate that planning permission for the building as amended was not sought prior to its construction. However, the applicant has duly submitted an application seeking retrospective planning permission.

- 7.23 The Council must consider each application on its own merit. Notwithstanding this, in either isolation or consideration of the cumulative impact of the development and other development in the vicinity (whether granted or currently being considered) it is not considered that there is any justification for refusing the application.
- 7.24 The neighbouring objector has referred to trees and vegetation having been removed from the site. There are no protected trees and therefore permission was not required to remove the trees or vegetation.

8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the proposed decision.

8.2 **Equality Act 2010**

The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of 'protected characteristics', namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership.

- 8.3 Having due regard to advancing equality involves:
 - removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics;
 - taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and
 - encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.
- 8.4 The above duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon persons who share a protected characteristic, over and above any other person, as a result of the proposed decision.

8.6 Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)

Section 31 of the Act clarifies that impacts on the Welsh language may be a consideration when taking decisions on applications for planning permission so far as it is material to the application. This duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no material effect upon the use of the Welsh language in Newport as a result of the proposed decision.

8.7 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Section 3 of the Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (section 5). This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the proposed decision.

9. CONCLUSION

- 9.1 The re-siting of the building does not result in a significant detrimental impact to the visual amenity of the area or the amenity of the neighbouring commercial operators. The development does not give rise to the need for any additional considerations above those generated by the previous application.
- 9.2 It is therefore recommended that the application is granted subject to the following conditions.

10. **RECOMMENDATION**

GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS

01 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the following plans and documents: 310181/6 Revision A, 610181/2.

Reason: In the interests of clarity and to ensure the development complies with the submitted plans and documents on which this decision was based

Pre –occupation conditions

02 Prior to the first beneficial use of the buildings hereby approved, the vehicle parking spaces shall be demarcated as per the approved plans and shall remain available for parking in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the development is served by adequate parking provision in the interests of highway safety.

03 Prior to the first use of the buildings hereby approved a Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall clearly explain how reliance on private motor vehicles is to be reduced and how the use of other forms of transport by occupiers of the site will be encouraged. The Travel Plan shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: To ensure the efficient function of the site, to avoid any adverse impacts on the local highways and to promote sustainable transport.

General conditions

04 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 and the Town & Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987, as amended (or any order revoking and re-enacting those Orders with or without modification) the premises the subject of this permission shall not be used other than for purposes falling within Class B1/B2/B8 of the Use Classes Order without the prior grant of planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the use remains compatible with surrounding land uses in the area.

05 The finished floor levels for building hereby approved shall be set no lower than 8.15 metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD) (Newlyn).

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.

06 No plant or machinery shall be installed on the southern or eastern elevations of the building hereby approved.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to protect the working environment of neighbouring commercial buildings.

NOTE TO APPLICANT

01 The development plan for Newport is the Newport Local Development Plan 2011 – 2026 (Adopted January 2015). Policies SP1, SP3, SP17, SP18, GP1, GP2, GP3, GP4, GP6, CE6 and T4 were relevant to the determination of the application.

02 As of 1st October 2012 any connection to the public sewerage network (foul or surface water sewerage) for the first time will require an adoption agreement with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. For further advice contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water on 01443 331155.

03 The proposed development (including any demolition) has been screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and it is considered that an Environmental Statement is not required.

04 The applicant is advised that the archaeological work must be undertaken to the appropriate Standard and Guidance set by Chartered Institute for Archaeologists (CIfA), (www.archaeologists.net/codes/ifa) and it is recommended that it is carried out either by a CIfA Registered Organisation (www.archaeologists.net/ro) or an accredited Member.

05 The applicant is advised on behalf on Network Rail that:

-Should access to Network Rail land be required approval from Network Rail Asset Protection Team must be sought.

-All surface water drainage should be directed away from Network Rail's land to the public mains system.

-Where Network Rail has defined access points, these must be maintained to Network Rail's satisfaction.

-Any lighting associated with the development (including vehicle lights) must not interfere with the sighting of signalling apparatus and/or train drivers vision on approaching trains. The location and colour of lights must not give rise to the potential for confusion with the signalling arrangements on the railway.

-Where new roads, turning spaces or parking areas are to be situated adjacent to the railway; which is at or below the level of the development, suitable crash barriers or high kerbs should be provided to prevent vehicles accidentally driving or rolling onto the railway or damaging the lineside fencing.

-Applications that are likely to generate an increase in trips under railway bridges may be of concern to Network Rail where there is potential for an increase in 'Bridge strikes'. Vehicles hitting railway bridges cause significant disruption and delay to rail users. Consultation with Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineers is necessary to understand if there is a problem. Developers may be asked to pay for bridge protection barriers.

06 On behalf of Natural Resources Wales, the applicant is advised that the site is located within a flood risk area and consideration should be given to the creation of an emergency evacuation plan.

APPLICATION DETAILS

No: 16/0817 Ward:	ALLT-YR-YN
-------------------	------------

Type: FULL

Expiry Date: 29-SEP-2016

Applicant: MR THOMAS

Site: 35, ALLT-YR-YN ROAD, NEWPORT, NP20 5EB

Proposal: ERECTION OF TWO STOREY EXTENSION AND SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, ALTERATIONS TO VEHICLE ACCESS AND CREATION OF ADDITIONAL CAR PARKING SPACE (RESUBMISSION FOLLOWING REFUSAL OF 16/0386)

Recommendation: REFUSED

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This application seeks permission for the erection of a two storey side extension and single storey rear extension, alterations to vehicle access and creation of an additional parking space at the detached propoerty in the Allt-yr-Yn ward. It is a resubmission of previous refusal 16/0386.
- 1.2 This application has been called to Planning Committee by Councillor Fouweather.

2. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

16/0386 ERECTION OF TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION Refused AND SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION

3. POLICY CONTEXT

3.1 Newport Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (Adopted January 2015)

Policy GP2 General Development Principles – General Amenity states that development will not be permitted where it has a significant adverse affect on local amenity in terms of noise, disturbance, overbearing, light, odours and air quality. Development will not be permitted which is detrimental to the visual amenity. Proposals should seek to design out crime and anti-socail behaviour, promote inclusion and provide adequate amenity for future occupiers.

Policy GP6 General Development Principles – Quality of Deisgn states that good quality design will be sought in all forms of development. In considering proposals, a number of factors are listed which should be considered to ensure a good quality scheme is developed. These include consideration of the context of the site; access, permeability and layout; preservation and enhancement; scale and form of the development; materials and detailing; and sustainability.

3.2 <u>House Extensions and Domestic Outbuildings Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted</u> <u>August 2015)</u>

Provides guidance on suitable extensions to dwellings and domestic outbuildings.

3.3 <u>Newport City Council Parking Standards (Adopted August 2015)</u> Provides guidance on parking requirements.

4. CONSULTATIONS

4.1 None.

5. INTERNAL COUNCIL ADVICE

5.1 HEAD OF STREETSCENE AND CITY SERVICES (HIGHWAYS): No objection subject to the driveway being hard paved and suitable drainage being employed to prevent surface water run onto the adopted highway.

6. **REPRESENTATIONS**

6.1 NEIGHBOURS: All properties with a common boundary and opposite were consulted (four addresses). No representations were received.

7. ASSESSMENT

- 7.1 It is proposed to erect a two storey side, single storey rear extension and alterations to vehicle access and creation of additional parking.
- 7.2 The proposed rear extension would measure a maximum of 12.4 metres in width, and project 0.9 metres from the rear elevation of the existing dwelling. It would measure 2.9 metres in height to the ridge of the pitched roof, 2.1 metres to the eaves. It is proposed to insert 1no. large window and bifold doors in the rear elevation of the extension with 5no. roof lights proposed in the rear facing roof slope.
- 7.3 The two storey side extension would measure 5.1 metres in width and a maximum of 10.2 metres in depth. It would be set back from the front elevation of the existing dwelling by 0.9 metres. It would have a maximum height of 7.6 metres to the ridge of the hipped roof, 5.7 metres to the eaves. The roof of the proposed extension would not be set down from the roof of the main house. It is proposed to insert 1no. obscure glazed window in the ground floor side elevation of the two storey side extension. It is proposed to insert a garage door with windows over an entrance door in the ground floor front elevation and 2no. large windows at first floor level. The side extension would be within 1.55 metres of the property at no.33.
- 7.4 It is also proposed to amend the existing driveway arrangements to provide additional parking to the front of the property. The existing driveway gates would be removed together with a small section of the front wall. This would provide a 5.2 metre wide opening to allow parking spaces for 2no. vehicles on the driveway. Head of Streetscene and City Services (Highways) have no objections to the proposals as 3no. parking spaces would be provided at the property, when including the garage space, however they have advised the driveway must be hard surfaced with suitable drainage employed to prevent surface water run-off onto the adopted highway. It is also proposed to erect a fence between no.33 and the front elevation of the proposed side extension, measuring 1.89 metres in width and 1.8 metres in height.
- 7.5 The previous reasons for refusal were; "The proposed development would result in the loss of off street parking at the property and would therefore fail to comply with Newport City Council Parking Standards (Adopted August 2015)." And "The proposed two storey side extension would result in the unacceptable unbalancing of the property and infilling of the gap between the application property and neighbouring property at no. 33 Allt-yr-Yn Road. Combined with the incongruous design it would in contravention of policies GP2 (General Amenity) and GP6 (Quality of Design) of the Newport Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (Adopted January 2015) and House Extensions and Domestic Outbuildings Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted August 2015)."
- 7.6 In order to address the reasons for refusal additional parking has been provided, fenestration to the front elevation amended and the width of the extension reduced by 0.7 metres. It is considered that the parking concerns have been adequately addressed as parking provision in accordance with Newport City Council Parking Standards has now been provided.

- 7.7 The reduction in width of the two storey side extension allows for a gap between the front of the application property and property at no. 33 of 1.89 metres. While this more closely reflects the spacing to the other neighbouring property at no. 37 (3.2 metres), the increase in width of the property would be approximately 70%, which would unbalance the appearance of the property. This combined with the lack of architectural detailing would result in an incongruous appearance and detract from the character of the existing proeprty.
- 7.8 Due to the location and scale of the proposed extensions, combined with the lack of openings in the side elevation of no. 33, it is not considered that the proposed extensions would result in an unacceptable impact on neighbouring properties in terms of overbearing or loss of light when assessed using the 45 degree tests set out in the House extensions and Domestic Outbuildings Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted August 2015).

8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the proposed decision.

8.2 **Equality Act 2010**

The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of 'protected characteristics', namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership.

- 8.3 Having due regard to advancing equality involves:
 - removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics;
 - taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and
 - encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.
- 8.4 The above duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon persons who share a protected characteristic, over and above any other person, as a result of the proposed decision.

8.6 Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)

Section 31 of the Act clarifies that impacts on the Welsh language may be a consideration when taking decisions on applications for planning permission so far as it is material to the application. This duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no material effect upon the use of the Welsh language in Newport as a result of the proposed decision.

8.7 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Section 3 of the Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (section 5). This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the proposed decision.

9. CONCLUSION

9.1 It is considered that the proposed side extension is unacceptable as it would result in the unacceptable unbalancing of the property and infilling of the gap between the application property and neighbouring property at no. 33 Allt-yr-Yn Road together with the incongruous design would be in contravention of adopted policies and guidance.

10. **RECOMMENDATION**

REFUSED

01 The proposed two storey side extension would result in the unacceptable unbalancing of the property and infilling of the gap between the application property and neighbouring property at no. 33 Allt-yr-Yn Road. Combined with the incongruous design it would be in contravention of policies GP2 (General Amenity) and GP6 (Quality of Design) of the Newport Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (Adopted January 2015) and House Extensions and Domestic Outbuildings Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted August 2015).

NOTE TO APPLICANT

01 This decision relates to plan Nos: Proposed Floor Plans and Proposed Elevations R201-05B-A1

02 The development plan for Newport is the Newport Local Development Plan 2011 – 2026 (Adopted January 2015). Policies GP2 and GP6 were relevant to the determination of this application.

03 House Extensions and Domestic Outbuildings Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted August 20150 was relevant to the determination of this application.

04 Newport City Council Parking Standards (Adopted August 2015) were relevant to the determination of this application.

05 Due to the minor nature of the proposed development (including any demolition) and the location of the proposed development, it is considered that the proposals did not need to be screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.

APPLICATION DETAILS

No:	16/1090	Ward:	ALWAY		
Туре:	FULL				
Expiry Date:	24-JAN-2017				
Applicant:	J CONIBEER,	LITTLE BLU	EBELLS		
Site:	ALWAY JUNI NP19 9QP	OR AND IN	FANT SCHOOL,	ABERTHAW R	OAD, NEWPORT,
Bronosal:	CONSTRUCT				N

Proposal: CONSTRUCTION OF TIMBER CANOPY TO SIDE ELEVATION

Recommendation: GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a timber canopy to the side elevation of the Little Bluebells nursery, Alway Junior and Infant School in the Alway ward. The school building has been extended over time and is comprised of several sections including the junior and infant school and the Flying Start Little Bluebells Nursery. The canopy would replace the existing retractable canopy that is located in the north east facing elevation of the nursery that is located towards the southern boundary of the site and would allow an external play area.

2. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

99/1045	ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY CLASSROOM EXTENSION WITH A LINK TO MAIN BUILDING	
07/0080	EXTENSION TO SCHOOL PARKING AREA	GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS
08/0023	ERECTION OF STORAGE CONTAINER	GRANTED
09/0170	EXTERNAL CANOPY FOR OUTDOOR PLAY	GRANTED
11/1093	EXTERNAL CANOPY FOR OUTDOOR PLAY	GRANTED

3. POLICY CONTEXT

- 3.1 The adopted Newport Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (adopted January 2015).
- 3.2 GP2 General Development Principles General Amenity. States that development will not be permitted where it has a significant adverse effect on local amenity in terms of noise, disturbance, overbearing, light, odours and air quality. Development will not be permitted which is detrimental to the visual amenity. Proposals should seek to design out crime and anti-social behaviour, promote inclusion and provide adequate amenity for future occupiers.
- 3.3 GP6 General Development Principles Quality of Design states that good quality design will be sought in all forms of development. In considering proposals, a number of factors are listed which should be considered to ensure a good quality scheme is developed. These include consideration of the context of the site; access, permeability and layout; preservation and enhancement; scale and form of the development; materials and detailing; and sustainability.

4. CONSULTATIONS

4.1 None.

5. INTERNAL COUNCIL ADVICE

5.1 None.

6. **REPRESENTATIONS**

6.1 NEIGHBOURS: All properties with a common boundary with the application site were consulted (70 properties) and no objections have been received.

7. ASSESSMENT

- 7.1 The proposed canopy would be freestanding and would not be directly attached to the side elevation of the building however it would be located just beneath the over hang of the buildings eaves. It would protrude a depth of 3.6 metres from the side elevation of the building and would have a width of 4.5 metres, providing a covered play area of $16.2m^2$. The canopy would have a lean to roof with the highest point located just underneath the eaves overhang at a height of 2.8 metres and the eaves height would measure 2.25 metres. The canopy would be supported by 4no. timber legs in each corner with a maximum height of 2.25 metres. The canopy would be constructed from timber that is treated and is suitable for school playgrounds.
- 7.2 It is considered that the proposed canopy, by virtue of size, design and location would relate sympathetically to its surroundings and is not considered a prominent addition to the building.

8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the proposed decision.

8.2 *Equality Act 2010*

The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of 'protected characteristics', namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership.

- 8.3 Having due regard to advancing equality involves:
 - removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics;
 - taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and
 - encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.
- 8.4 The above duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon persons who share a protected characteristic, over and above any other person, as a result of the proposed decision.

8.6 Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)

Section 31 of the Act clarifies that impacts on the Welsh language may be a consideration when taking decisions on applications for planning permission so far as it is material to the application. This duty has been given due consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that there would be no material effect upon the use of the Welsh language in Newport as a result of the proposed decision.

8.7 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Section 3 of the Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (section 5). This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the proposed decision.

9. CONCLUSION

- 9.1 The proposed canopy is considered acceptable in terms of its size, design and impact on the amenity of the surrounding area.
- 9.2 The proposal therefore complies with Polices GP2 (General Ameity) and GP6 (Quality of Design) of the adopted Newport Local Development Plan 2011-2026. Overall the proposal is acceptable and planning permission should be granted.

10. **RECOMMENDATION**

GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS

01 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the following plans and documents: NPS-00-00-DR-A-(00)-000 – Plan and Elevation of External Work to Erect a Canopy Over the Play Area Rev P1; NPS-00-00-DR-A-(00)-000 – Overhead plan of Alway Primary School Rev P1.

Reason: In the interests of clarity and to ensure the development complies with the submitted plans and documents on which this decision was based

NOTE TO APPLICANT

01 This decision relates to plan Nos: Site Location Plan; NPS-00-00-DR-A-(00)-000 – Plan and Elevation of External Work to Erect a Canopy Over the Play Area Rev P1; NPS-00-00-DR-A-(00)-000 – Overhead plan of Alway Primary School Rev P1.

02 The development plan for Newport is the Newport Local Development Plan 2011 – 2026 (Adopted January 2015). Policies GP2 and GP6 were relevant to the determination of this application.

03 As of 1st October 2012 any connection to the public sewerage network (foul or surface water sewerage) for the first time will require an adoption agreement with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. For further advice contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water on 01443 331155.

04 Due to the minor nature of the proposed development (including any demolition) and the location of the proposed development, it is considered that the proposals did not need to be screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.

Agenda Item 7.



Report Planning Committee

1 February 2017
7
Appeal Decisions
To inform Members of the outcome of recent appeals
Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing
Marshfield
The following planning appeal decisions are reported to help inform future decisions of Planning Committee
To accept the appeal decisions as a basis for informing future decisions of the Planning Committee.
Planning Committee
Not applicable

This report was prepared without consultation because it is to inform Planning Committee of appeal decisions already taken.

Background

The reports contained in this schedule provide information on recent appeal decisions.

The purpose of the attached reports is to inform future decision-making. This will help ensure that future decisions benefit the City and its communities by allowing good quality development in the right locations and resisting inappropriate or poor quality development in the wrong locations.

The applicant has a statutory right of appeal against the refusal of permission in most cases. There is no Third Party right of appeal against a decision.

Work is carried out by existing staff and there are no staffing issues. It is sometimes necessary to employ a Barrister to act on the Council's behalf in defending decisions at planning appeals. This cost is met by existing budgets. Where the Planning Committee refuses an application against Officer advice, Members will be required to assist in defending their decision at appeal.

Where applicable as planning considerations, specific issues relating to sustainability and environmental issues, equalities impact and crime prevention impact of each proposed development are addressed in the relevant report in the attached schedule.

Financial Summary

The cost of defending decisions at appeal is met by existing budgets. Costs can be awarded against the Council at an appeal if the Council has acted unreasonably and/or cannot defend its decisions. Similarly, costs can be awarded in the Council's favour if an appellant has acted unreasonably and/or cannot substantiate their grounds of appeal.

Risks

The key risk relating to appeal decisions relates to awards of costs against the Council.

An appeal can be lodged by the applicant if planning permission is refused, or if planning permission is granted but conditions are imposed, or against the Council's decision to take formal enforcement action. Costs can be awarded against the Council if decisions cannot be defended as reasonable, or if it behaves unreasonably during the appeal process, for example by not submitting required documents within required timescales. Conversely, costs can be awarded in the Council's favour if the appellant cannot defend their argument or behaves unreasonably.

An appeal can also be lodged by the applicant if the application is not determined within the statutory time period. However, with the type of major development being presented to the Planning Committee, which often requires a Section 106 agreement, it is unlikely that the application will be determined within the statutory time period. Appeals against non-determination are rare due to the further delay in receiving an appeal decision: it is generally quicker for applicants to wait for the Planning Authority to determine the application. Costs could only be awarded against the Council if it is found to have acted unreasonably. Determination of an application would only be delayed for good reason, such as resolving an objection or negotiating improvements or Section 106 contributions, and so the risk of a costs award is low.

Mitigation measures to reduce risk are detailed in the table below. The probability of these risks occurring is considered to be low due to the mitigation measures, however the costs associated with a public inquiry can be very significant. These are infrequent, so the impact is considered to be medium.

	1	1	1	n1
Risk	Impact of Risk if it occurs* (H/M/L)	Probability of risk occurring (H/M/L)	What is the Council doing or what has it done to avoid the risk or reduce its effect	Who is responsible for dealing with the risk?
Decisions challenged at appeal and costs awarded against the Council.	М	L	Ensure reasons for refusal can be defended at appeal; Ensure planning conditions imposed meet the tests set out in Circular 016/2014.	Planning Committee Planning Committee
			Provide guidance to Planning Committee regarding relevant material planning considerations, conditions and reasons for refusal.	Development Services Manager and Senior Legal Officer
			Ensure appeal timetables are adhered to.	Planning Officers
Appeal lodged against non- determination, with costs awarded against the Council	М	L	Avoid delaying the determination of applications unreasonably.	Development Services Manager

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures

Links to Council Policies and Priorities

Not applicable. This report is to inform Planning Committee of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate and/or Welsh Ministers.

Options Available

To accept the appeal decisions as a basis for informing future decisions of the Planning Committee.

Preferred Option and Why

To accept the appeal decisions as a basis for informing future decisions of the Planning Committee.

Comments of Chief Financial Officer

In the normal course of events, there should be no specific financial implications arising from the determination of planning applications or enforcement action.

There is always a risk of a planning decision being challenged at appeal. This is especially the case where the Committee makes a decision contrary to the advice of Planning Officers or where in making its decision, the Committee takes into account matters which are not relevant planning considerations. These costs can be very considerable, especially where the planning application concerned is large or complex or the appeal process is likely to be protracted.

Members of the Planning Committee should be mindful that the costs of defending appeals and any award of costs against the Council following a successful appeal must be met by the taxpayers of Newport.

There is no provision in the Council's budget for such costs and as such, compensating savings in services would be required to offset any such costs that were incurred as a result of a successful appeal.

Comments of Monitoring Officer

There are no legal implications other than those referred to in the report or detailed above.

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change

Development Management work is undertaken by an in-house team and therefore there are no staffing implications arising from this report. Officer recommendations have been based on adopted planning policy which aligns with the Single Integrated Plan and the Council's Corporate Plan objectives.

Local issues

Not applicable. This report is to inform Planning Committee of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate and/or Welsh Ministers.

Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010

The Equality Act 2010 contains a Public Sector Equality Duty which came into force on 06 April 2011. The Act identifies a number of 'protected characteristics', namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership. The new single duty aims to integrate consideration of equality and good relations into the regular business of public authorities. Compliance with the duty is a legal obligation and is intended to result in better informed decision-making and policy development and services that are more effective for users. In exercising its functions, the Council must have due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. The Act is not overly prescriptive about the approach a public authority should take to ensure due regard, although it does set out that due regard to advancing equality involves: removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics; taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

An Equality Impact Assessment for delivery of the Development Management service has been completed and can be viewed on the Council's website.

Children and Families (Wales) Measure

Not applicable. This report is to inform Planning Committee of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate and/or Welsh Ministers.

Consultation

Not applicable. This report is to inform Planning Committee of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate and/or Welsh Ministers.

Background Papers

Not applicable

Dated: 1 February 2017

PLANNING APPLICATION APPEAL

APPEAL REF: APPEAL TYPE: WARD: SITE:

SUBJECT:

APPELLANT: PLANNING INSPECTOR: DATE OF COUNCIL'S DECISION: OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: COMMITTEE/DELEGATED: 16/0348 Written Representations Marshfield Ty Hir Newydd, Michaelstone Road, Michaelston-y-fedw, Cardiff, CF3 6XT PROPOSED RETIREMENT DWELLING (RESUBMISSION OF WITHDRAWN APPLICATION 15/1459) Mr David Dobson Paul Selby 6th July 2016 Refused Committee

DECISION: DISMISSED



Planning permission was sought for the erection of a detached, single storey retirement dwelling in the grounds of the property known as Ty Hir Newydd, Michaelstone Road, Michaelston-y-Fedw, Newport. An application for the development was previously submitted (15/1459), but withdrawn, so that the applicant could address the highway issues.

Planning permission was refused by the council due to its location being in an isolated, unsustainable location in a village which lacks convenient access to any local services or facilities and is not served by a bus service. The site is a considerable distance from the A48 via a narrow lane with no pavements, street lighting and few passing places, which does not encourage use by pedestrians or cyclists as a sustainable form of transport. This would result in occupiers of the development being entirely reliant on the private car. The proposal is therefore contrary to a number of policies.

The inspector notes that the main issue here is whether the proposal would be sustainably located, having regard to local policy relating to development outside settlement limits.

The development would be contrary to Policy SP5 of the Newport Local Development Plan (LDP) as the proposed development would not specifically benefit the rural economy. It also does not satisfy other policies relating to conversions or replacement dwellings.

Policy GP4 states that development proposals should be accessible by a choice of means of transport. The inspector notices that there are no regular bus services that serve the area and opportunities for walking and cycling to reach services and facilities elsewhere are constrained by the nature of the local rural routes being unlit, lacking footways or verges, and with visibility limited by hedgerows. The inspector concluded that the area lacks significant employment opportunities and that infill in this location

would contribute to unsustainable travel patterns, both contrary to SP1. Despite the appellant having submitted a Unilateral Planning Obligation for the provision of affordable housing off site, the inspector feels this would not justify the countryside location or outweigh the identified harm.

Therefore, he found that the proposal would not accord with the spatial and sustainability objectives of LDP policies SP1, SP10 and GP4 and would conflict with the aim of PPW to strictly control houses outside settlements recognised in development plans.

For the above reasons, the appeal was dismissed.